DRAUGHTON  PARISH  COUNCIL          

The Pines
Draughton

Skipton 

BD23 6DU

  20 May 2019
Development Management
Craven District Council
Attn: Miss K Chew 
Dear Sirs
Application Ref. 2019/20400/FUL– Land at Draughton Heights
Thank you for consulting us on the above application.
At this stage, the Council would like to submit to you, by way of a holding reply, a number of observations and queries, as set out below, referenced to the Submission Draft Craven Local Plan (March 2018) where appropriate.  
We would request an extension to the statutory timescale for consultation to enable us to respond to you in more detail at a later date when the matters listed below have been clarified.

Water Sources - Local Plan Policy Env 8
1. We could have concerns as regards this development’s compliance with Local Plan Policy Env8, which seeks to prevent the deterioration of water resources and protect water sources.  We note the advice offered by the Environment Agency to the applicant.  In particular, we would like to understand in more detail how the water feed to the proposed ponds will draw from the local watercourses.  There may be concerns as regards the impact on other local businesses, ie the farms below the site, if water is to be diverted to the three ponds, affecting the supplies to these farms.  There could also be a risk of pollution in the supply reaching the farms, if substances are introduced upstream via the ponds or the associated infrastructure including toilets and car parking.  Please could you confirm that a full expert investigation will be carried out regarding the impact of the proposed development on present clean water supplies to the local businesses.

2. In answer to a query concerning the drying up of local watercourses as a result of the diversion of water, the applicant has informed us that he has a bore hole to help feed the ponds in dry weather conditions.  However, he was unable to tell us if he had permission to draw from it in any quantity.  Please could the applicant be requested to produce full information on his plans to mitigate any risks to the watercourses in the event of dry weather conditions.

Landscape - Local Plan Policy Env 1
3. There are also concerns that the feed to the ponds would affect the flow and course of the local becks, including Howgill Beck, which run into and through the village itself.  The village is shaped by its watercourses and springs which are a vital feature in the landscape.

Bridleway - Local Plan Policies Env 12, Env 1 and SP 12
4. We have not been able to understand the proposed arrangements for dealing with access into the site, given that the access route is shared with a bridleway open to the public.  Local Plan Policy Env 12 seeks to safeguard and improve the accessibility of bridleways.  In the case of this development, the applicant informs us that access would be restricted for vehicles and motorcycles, but it is not clear from the published proposals how this will enhance use of the bridleway for pedestrians and horse-riders, in line with the Local Plan Policy. 
5. We would like more information on the detailed proposals for mitigating the likely increase in traffic flow up and down Heights Lane, which is a narrow, minor road with a steep gradient and tight bends bordered with deep ditches, where it is difficult for vehicles moving in opposite directions to pass each other without incident.  We would have serious reservations about its suitability for an influx of heavy traffic servicing the new development on a regular basis.

Size of Development and Impact on Landscape and Environment

Local Plan Policy Env 1 and SP12
6. We have some concerns concerning the size of the proposed development in open countryside (with reference to the Local Plan guidelines set out in Policy Env1) and would like to understand why it is necessary to introduce three separate ponds.  We would like to see further information on the “wildlife pond” to understand its purpose in the overall development, when local wildlife such as water fowl, frogs, toads and newts will surely make use of any available standing water. 

7. We would appreciate clarification on the potential relationship of this development with the existing development close by, for which planning permission was granted in 2017 (Ref. 2017/18244/FUL), and which, taken together with the proposed development, may be regarded as of significant impact in an area of open countryside.
8. We note that Local Plan Policy SP12 provides for the provision by developers of infrastructure made necessary by their development, and we are concerned that this development of “camping pods” may require additional associated infrastructure and services for visitors, making use of the existing structure developed on the neighbouring development site.  Please could you provide us with further information on the relationship between the two developments, given their obvious proximity and scope to be combined into one more sizable development.
9. There are concerns that the development, especially if additional ancillary infrastructure is required, could potentially impact on the character of the landscape in this area of open countryside in contravention of Local Plan Policy Env1.  Please could you confirm whether the planning authority, if minded to grant consent for this application, would be likely to consider introducing any conditions, such as a restriction on inappropriate future developments.

10. In line with the holding objection submitted by the Yorkshire Wildlife Trust, we would also like clarification on the possible impact of the development on local wildlife and habitats, including habitats for ground nesting birds in the area, as the available reports which accompany the application do not provide information on this.  Please could you confirm if the planning authority is proposing to commission any further specialist reports. 
We will look forward to hearing from you in reply to our queries and with confirmation that, if submitted to you after the statutory date set for receipt of comments, a full response from the Parish Council may be taken into consideration.
Yours faithfully

Jane Markham
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